
 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 1, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-01-2016.  Page 1 of 5 

The City Council of The Village, Oklahoma, met in regular session at City Hall on 
Monday, August 1, 2016, at 7:30 p.m., at 2304 Manchester Drive.   

 
COUNCIL PRESENT STAFF PRESENT 
    
Hutch Hibbard, Mayor     Bruce K. Stone, City Manager   
Chris Bernardy, Vice-Mayor    Beverly Whitener, City Treasurer 
Dave Bennett, Council Member  Leslie Batchelor, City Attorney 
Sonny Wilkinson, Council Member 
C. Scott Symes, Council Member 
 
ITEM I:  CALL TO ORDER. 
 

Mayor Hibbard called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
ITEM II: INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
 

Vice-Mayor Bernardy gave the invocation and led the Council in the Pledge of 
Allegiance.        

 
ITEM III:   APPROVAL OF MINUTES. 
 
 The Mayor asked if there were any corrections, additions or deletions to the 
Minutes of the July 18, 2016 regular meeting. There were no corrections, additions or 
deletions and the Council approved the Minutes of the July 18, 2016 regular meeting as 
written. 
 
ITEM IV:   CITIZENS DESIRING TO BE HEARD, PRESENTATIONS. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this is a time for citizens to address the Council on any 
matter not on the posted agenda. 
 
 There were no citizens desiring to be heard. 
 
ITEM V: REVIEW OF EXPENDITURES 
 

The Council reviewed the following expenditures reports: 
           
General Fund, 7/15/2016:      $13,070.00 
General Fund, 7/15/2016:      $6,348.99 
General Fund, 7/15/2016:      $51,813.25 
General Fund, 7/21/2016:      $115,477.74 



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 1, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-01-2016.  Page 2 of 5 

 
ITEM VI: CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 08‐01‐2016 (A) AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR A NEW RESIDENTIAL STYLE OFFICE 
IN THE MAY AVENUE OFFICE SUITES PUD. 

 
 City Manager Bruce Stone advised the Council that the Planning & Zoning 
Commission reviewed the proposed development and recommended that the Council 
authorize the issuance of a building permit.  Mr. Stone advised that the plans conform to 
the development regulations adopted for this property.  Mr. Stone further advised that 
the developer would raze the existing single-family home on Huntleigh Drive and build a 
new office suite in its place. 
 
 Jeremy Bryant representing Marathon Construction answered questions from the 
Council. 
 
 After a brief discussion, Council Member Symes moved to approve Resolution 08-
01-2016 (A) authorizing the issuance of a building permit for a new residential style office 
in the May Avenue Office Suites PUD.  Vice-Mayor Bernardy seconded the motion.  The 
vote:  Yea – Symes, Bennett, Wilkinson, Bernardy and Hibbard.  Nay – none.    
 
ITEM VII: CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 08‐01‐2016 (B) AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR A NEW GYMNASIUM AT STANLEY 
HUPFIELD ACADEMY. 

 
 City Manager Bruce Stone advised the Council that the Planning & Zoning 
Commission reviewed the proposed development and recommended that the Council 
authorize the issuance of a building permit.  Mr. Stone advised that the plans conform to 
the A-1 Single- Family development regulations, which apply to this property 
 
 Council Member Symes told the Council about a donation to the school that he 
helped arrange. Council Member Symes advised that a tenant left the items when 
vacating a leased space.  Council Member Symes advised that the items included pencils, 
books, paper and backpacks.   
 

After a brief discussion, Council Member Wilkinson moved to approve Resolution 
08-01-2016 (B) authorizing the issuance of a building permit for a new gymnasium at 
Stanley Hupfield Academy.  Council Member Bennett seconded the motion.  The vote:  
Yea – Symes, Bennett, Wilkinson, Bernardy and Hibbard.  Nay – none.    
 
 
 



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 1, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-01-2016.  Page 3 of 5 

ITEM VIII: CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 08‐01‐2016 (C) AMENDING SECTIONS 
3.80, 5.34 AND 5.38, SUBSECTION (A) OF THE EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL 
HANDBOOK PERTAINING TO PAY GRADES & STEPS, INSURANCE BENEFITS 
AND LONGEVITY PAY. 

 

 City Manager Bruce Stone advised the Council that the proposed changes to the 
Employee Personnel Handbook are consistent with approved budget for FY 2016-17, 
applicable Collective Bargaining Agreements and Resolution 06-20-2016 (G), which was 
approved by the Council this past June.  
 

 After a brief discussion, Council Member Bennett moved to approve Resolution 
08-01-2016 (C) amending the Employee Personnel Handbook.  Vice-Mayor Bernardy 
seconded the motion.  The vote:  Yea – Symes, Bennett, Wilkinson, Bernardy and Hibbard.  
Nay – none.    
 

ITEM IX: CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 08‐01‐2016 (D) OPPOSING STATE 
QUESTION 779 AS DETRIMENTAL TO FUNDING FOR CITIES AND TOWNS 
IN OKLAHOMA AND URGING CITIZENS TO VOTE NO ON STATE QUESTION 
779. 

 
 Council Member Bennett told the Council that ACOG and OML are encouraging all 
cities and towns to adopt resolutions expressing opposition to State Question 779.  
Council Member Bennett stated that cities and towns are pro-education and believe there 
is a need for additional funding.  Council Member Bennett stated that a statewide 
education sales tax is not the right way to fund education, as it would be harmful to cities 
that depend heavily on sales taxes for funding.       
 
 Peggy Vogt, a resident of The Village, asked how the City would disseminate 
information about SQ 779.   Mr. Stone advised that the City would provide information to 
the media, make use of social media and publish an eNews article to educate the public 
about the proposition.   
 

After a brief discussion, Council Member Bennett moved to approve Resolution 
08-01-2016 (D) opposing SQ 779.  Vice-Mayor Bernardy seconded the motion.  The vote:  
Yea – Symes, Bennett, Wilkinson, Bernardy and Hibbard.  Nay – none.    
 
ITEM X:   REPORTS  

 
1) Reports from Staff: 
 

City Manager Bruce Stone reported on Brooklyn Tilley’s visit to the Fire Station, 
Police Station and City Hall.  Mr. Stone showed the Council pictures of the tour.  



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 1, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-01-2016.  Page 4 of 5 

Council Member Symes, who was instrumental in arranging the tour for the five-year 
old cancer patient (Make a Wish Foundation), said it was a great experience for the 
young girl and that the City staff did a great job in showing her around and welcoming 
her to City facilities.   

 
The Council discussed SQ 777, which will appear on the ballot this November.  

City Attorney Leslie Batchelor advised that the proposition, if approved, would 
severely limit the ability of cities and towns to regulate agricultural activities within 
their corporate limits.  Ms. Batchelor advised that OML and other cities have adopted 
resolutions stating their opposition to SQ 777. 

 
Mr. Stone advised the Council of a vendor BBQ lunch and appreciation event at 

Crossings at The Village on Friday, August 5th.   
 
Council Member Symes said the homes in Crossings in The Village appear to be 

small.   Mr. Stone advised that the homes under construction are approximately 1,700 
square feet in size.  Mr. Stone stated that the homes are lower end in terms of quality and 
features.   

 
Council Member Symes asked about certain taxpayers on the sales tax report.  Mr. 

Stone advised that the highlighted taxpayers on the report are either out of business or 
behind in remitting their taxes. 

 
2) Reports from Council: 

 
Council Member Wilkinson asked about regulations governing boats in The 

Village.  Mr. Stone advised that the city code does not prohibit boats in driveways and are 
not restricted in terms of how far they must be from the curb.   Mr. Stone stated that a 
few years ago staff provided a complete (photos) review of boats in The Village for the 
Council to consider.  Mr. Stone further advised of inconsistencies in regulations pertaining 
to boats, RVs, trailers and certain trucks.  Council Member Wilkinson expressed an 
interest in reviewing these and other regulations.   Council Member Bennett suggested 
that Council Member Wilkinson work with the City Manager and City Attorney to review 
these regulations and report to the Council later. 
 
 Council Member Bennett shared a recent experience he had with Dell Computer 
Tech Support.  Council Member Bennett told the Council that during the process he 
learned that Dell gives tours of their facility, if anyone is interested. 
 
 Council Member Bennett advised of a house on Andover where dogs are getting 
out of the backyard. Council Member Bennett expressed a concern that the dogs may not 
be cared for properly.  Council Member Bennett asked how long the City keeps dogs that 



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 1, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-01-2016.  Page 5 of 5 

are impounded.  Mr. Stone advised that City Code requires the Pound Master to keep 
impounded animals for at least 72 hours but that he usually keeps them much longer.   
 
 Vice-Mayor Bernardy thanked Council Member Symes for all that he did in 
arranging a tour of City facilities for Brooklyn Tilley. 
 

Vice-Mayor Bernardy asked if the city manager had made any progress on 
obtaining a water well to supply the splash pad.  Mr. Stone advised that the goal is to have 
a well operational in summer 2017.    
 
 Council Member Symes asked about the water bill for the splash pad.  Mr. Stone 
advised that the most recent bill was approximately $10,000.  Mr. Stone advised that 
adequate funds have been budgeted to pay for water service this summer.   
 
 Council Member Symes told the Council that Nancy’s Dress Shop would be leasing 
the space where Red Chateau is in Casady Square.   
 
 City Attorney Leslie Batchelor told the Council that her staff would be submitting 
annual TIF reports as required by law.  Ms. Batchelor stated that this might be a good time 
revisit long-term planning for TIF District #1, infrastructure improvements and the 
development of enforceable architectural design standards.     
 
ITEM XI: NEW BUSINESS 
 
 There was no New Business to come before the Council. 
 
ITEM XII ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 9:05 p.m. 
 
______________________   ______________________ 
Mayor Hibbard    Vice-Mayor Bernardy 
 
______________________   ______________________ 
Council Member Bennett   Council Member Wilkinson 
 
______________________   ______________________ 
City Clerk     Council Member Symes 


